
 

 

Board of Trustees – Teaching and Learning Committee 
Online Meeting  

Wednesday, May 6, 2020 – 12:00p.m. 
 

Notice of Online Meeting: 
In compliance with the guidance of local and state Health Officials, the Helena Public Schools are conducting this Board of 
Trustees Teaching & Learning Committee Meeting as an online meeting. This meeting will not occur at any specific 
location as all members will attend online. 
 

Members of the public are able to attend by clicking on the below link. We ask that all participants mute their microphone 
until called upon by the Committee Chair for general and/or specific public comments. Upon completing public comment, 
please ensure that your microphone is again muted. 
 

This meeting will take place using Microsoft Teams. However, participants need only to click on the below link to join the 
meeting from any internet enabled device. 
 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%2
2Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-
5516e94c521c%22%7d 
 
 

Committee Purpose Statement: The Teaching and Learning Committee collectively works to operationalize the strategic 
priorities of the Helena Public Schools specifically in areas related to our goals and measures for teaching and learning.  

 
 

AGENDA 
           

I. CALL TO ORDER / INTRODUCTIONS  
 
II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT: This is the time for comment on public matters that are not on the 

agenda.  Public matters do not include any pending legal matters, private personnel issues or private 
student issues.  Please do not attempt to address such issues at this time or you will be ruled out of 
order.  The Board cannot enter into a discussion during General Public Comment. 

 
III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 

 
IV. REVIEW OF MINUTES 

 03/04/20 Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting Minutes (see attached) 
 
 
 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-5516e94c521c%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-5516e94c521c%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-5516e94c521c%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-5516e94c521c%22%7d


 

 

Helena Public Schools Board of Trustees 

Sarah Sullivan  
Board Chair 

Terry Beaver 
Vice Chair 

Tyler Emmert 
Trustee 

Luke Muszkiewicz 
Trustee 

Jeff Hindoien 
Trustee 

Libby Goldes 
Trustee 

 

Sanjay Talwani 
Trustee 

Jennifer Walsh 
Trustee 

   
 

 
V. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION  

A. Update on Remote Learning  
⋅ Grading Update (T. Ream and J. Davidson) 
⋅ Framework Development (J. McKay, J. Davidson and G. Myers)   
⋅ Update on Spring/Summer Considerations for Small Groups (T. Ream)   

  
B. Spring Survey Discussion (T. Ream)   

Discussion pertaining to survey plans during our ongoing closure   
 

VI. BOARD COMMENTS 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT    

 
Next Meeting: 

June 3, 2020  |  Meeting Venue/Format TBD  



 

 

Board of Trustees – Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting 
May Butler Center  |  55 S. Rodney Ave 
Wednesday, March 4, 2020 – 12:00pm 

 
 

MINUTES - DRAFT 
           

ATTENDANCE 
 Committee: Others: 
 Sarah Sullivan, Committee Chair Terry Beaver, Trustee 
 Libby Goldes, Committee Member Tyler Ream, Superintendent 
 Siobhan Hathhorn, Committee Member Josh McKay, Assistant Superintendent 
  Barb Ridgway, Chief of Staff  
  Gary Myers, Education Technology Coordinator 
  Jane Shawn, HEA President  
         
I.  CALL TO ORDER/INTRODUCTIONS 

The meeting was called to order at 12:01pm by Committee Chair, Sarah Sullivan. 
 

II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments were offered.   

 
III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 

No changes were requested. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

No changes were requested. 
  

V. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
A. Assessment Platform 
Dr. Ream provided an overview of the previous board meeting’s assessment platform presentation.  
Ms. Goldes recommended including assessment information in handbooks and on the website.  Ms. 
Ridgway said the information was included in handbooks, and it would be added to the website.  Dr. 
Ream added the assessments would be reassessed annually and modified as needed.   
 
 
 



 

03.04.2020 Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting Minutes - DRAFT    2 
 

B. Spring Survey Update 
Dr. Ream provided the following updates to the committee: 

• The student survey had been finalized. 
• The staff survey was being edited. 
• The community survey would be finalized after the staff survey.   

 
Dr. Ream listed a May 2020, estimate for distribution of the first survey and provided an overview of 
the goals for the surveys as follows: 

• Fewer than 25 questions, 
• A duration of no longer than 15 minutes 
• Determining the most effective questions in conjunction with Panorama Education 
• Developing questions that will lead to the actionable results 

 
Dr. Ream provided a draft of the first survey to the committee.  Mr. Myers added the vocabulary on 
surveys varied by grade level.   
 
Ms. Sullivan asked how the surveys were conducted.  Dr. Ream answered they would be sent via email.  
He added that while the vendor will know if the intended recipient has completed the survey, only the 
completion rate would be reported to the district.   
 
Ms. Goldes asked if students would have the ability to comment on questions.  Mr. Myers answered 
that there were textbox options on surveys.  Dr. Ream added that textboxes slowed down the survey, 
so they would have to be added sparingly since longer surveys had lower completion rates.   
 
Ms. Sullivan asked if the survey would be brought back to the committee before being sent to students.  
Dr. Ream affirmed.   
 
C. Data-Related Next Steps 
Dr. Ream provided a follow up on the feedback from the assessment presentation given at the last 
board meeting as follows: 

• STAR, which seems to have served its purpose.  Teachers and administrators have been asking 
for something different.  

• Concern has been expressed that STAR isn’t necessarily predictive of SBAC, and it has been 
agreed that there should be some alignment.   

• Ease of reporting is important. 
• Substitutions for STAR include MAP or IReady in upper level grades. 
• Actionability of the tool should be a primary focus. 

 
Mr. McKay said the district also was looking at longitudinal assessment.  For example, a 4th grade 
teacher being able to see a 3rd grade student’s performance.  Mr. Myers added some of the benefits of 
longitudinal assessment for students as helping at the middle school and high school level and 
progressing on a path towards performing well on the ACT.   
 
Ms. Sullivan asked the committee to send upcoming discussion items for future meetings.  Dr. Ream 
added the next meeting would include a discussion on Performance Matters – one location for student 
assessments.    



 

03.04.2020 Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting Minutes - DRAFT    3 
 

 

VI. BOARD COMMENTS 
No additional comments were offered.   

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:06pm by Ms. Sullivan.  The next Teaching and Learning Committee 
meeting will be at noon on April 1, 2020. 



Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting
Helena Public Schools – May 6, 2020



Grading Update:

• Grading criteria has been finalized and will be public today
• Framework remains largely unchanged from 4/27 Board Update (presentation) 
• Includes problem-solving FAQ section to help guide MS/HS student decisions pertaining 

to selecting a letter grade v. credit only

Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

02



Creating Meaningful Resources: Framework Development

• The Academics Team continues to work to provide tools/resources in real-time for 
teachers as needs arise

• The Remote Learning Framework was developed within the first two weeks of closure to 
share best practices and establish a “floor” of routines/schedules
 Asynchronous recommendation
 Virtual class meetings (wellness + academics)
 Two graded assignments per week for each subject area
 Assessment recommendations 

Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

03



Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

03



Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

03



Update on Spring/Summer Considerations for Small Groups 
• In researching options for the spring, significant legal and technical issues exist that cloud 

potential plans for bringing small groups of students to school for specific instruction. 

Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

04



Spring Survey Discussion
• Prior to physical closure in mid-March, surveys were drafted and ready for spring 

implementation 
• Surveys do not reflect remote learning and while feedback in that regard is important, 

altering questions would be a significant departure from our annual plans
• Options include:

 Student, parent and employee surveys as planned (mid-late May) 
 Delete surveys from spring implementation due to ongoing situation 
 Revise surveys to include questions that pertain to remote learning
 No survey implementation this spring  

Teaching and Learning Committee
May 6, 2020

04





DRAFT: Grading for Remote Learning     
School Building Closures, Spring 2020  
 

Background  
During the spring of the 2019/2020 school year, the Helena Public School experienced the physical closure of our 
school buildings as a result of the COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic. Initially, closure decisions impacted the final 
two weeks of the third quarter. However, as closures were extended, it became clear that these closures would 
significantly impact the entire fourth quarter of the school year.  
 
With a transition to remote learning, questions arose pertaining to grading. The sudden shift radically altered the 
nature of teaching and learning from our traditional, in-person environment to a completely remote, asynchronous 
environment. This complicated nearly every aspect associated with teaching and learning including how teachers 
are able to assess student learning in order to understand who has mastered specific concepts and which students 
require additional attention.  
 
Under normal circumstances, educators must weigh a variety of formal and informal data points in generating what 
must be determined, a reliable and valid grade. The physical closure of school buildings has caused many of these 
data points to be, at best, complicated, and at worst, unavailable. Therefore, grace and understanding became an 
early priority for Helena educators as they worked remotely with their students.  
 
After weeks of study and consideration, the below grading changes were finalized. Each change is structured to 
provide flexibility, ensuring that students are not penalized for encountering barriers to learning including access to 
technology, internet, resources, etc. 
 
 

Our Commitment 
As a district, we commit to ongoing understanding as we work with students and families throughout this crisis. We 
will continuously strive to assist our students both in obtaining the tools and resources they need for remote 
learning and in their efforts as they seek to learn in this new environment. Every effort, from teaching to grading, 
will emphasize the flexibility and understanding that we all need to transcend the physical, mental and emotional 
challenges of this COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic.  
 

 
High School Grading 
Grading for high schools will remain consistent with past practices but will include an additional option for students 
to consider. Grading will adhere to the traditional letter grade scale. However, students will have the option of 
selecting a grade of “credit” instead of a traditional letter grade. A grade of “credit” will not factor into a student’s 
grade point average (GPA) and will simply show that the student passed the class. High School students will be 
required to inform their teacher of their grading intent for that class on or before Wednesday, June 10th.   
 
This change provides students with needed flexibility and will ensure that any impacts associated with the sudden 
shift to remote learning will not negatively impact a student’s GPA or future, associated plans. Before making this 
decision, students, parents and guardians should consider the below:  

 Students should check with colleges and universities that they may be interested in attending to 
understand how a grade of “credit” will be viewed during the admissions process.  

 Students should consider whether their earned letter grade actually improves their GPA prior to making a 
decision. The grace period of time between the culmination of classes and the posting of final grades will 
provide students with the time needed to appropriately weigh all of their options.  

 
Students who are behind academically simply need to respond to their teachers. In the spirit of flexibility, teachers 
will work with students to modify assignments and grading provide students with a pathway forward. Furthermore, 
students will have a full two weeks after the semester ends to resolve any marks/grades of “incomplete.” The 
deadline to resolve an “incomplete” is on/before Wednesday, June 24th.  Please note that per state rules, any 



incomplete grades resolved after June 24th may negatively impact a student’s extracurricular eligibility for the fall 
semester. Incomplete grades resolved after Wednesday, June 24th will need to be appealed to the superintendent 
for activities/athletics purposes.  
 
Middle School Grading 
In consideration of grades at the middle school level, it was determined that our middle schools would align with 
high schools in adhering to the traditional letter grade scale. Many middle school students participate in high school 
level courses already which dictated a need for alignment. However, like our high schools, students will have the 
option of selecting a grade of “credit” instead of a letter grade. Middle School students will be required to inform 
their teacher of their grading intent for that class on or before Wednesday, June 3rd. Note: Middle school students 
taking a high school level course will be required to inform their teacher of their grading intent for that class on or 
before Wednesday, June 10th (Algebra I, Spanish, and Honors Math I) 
 
Please see the above High School Grading section and the below Frequently Asked Questions section for additional 
information pertaining to the letter grade v. credit option.  
 
Elementary Grading 
Even under normal circumstances, grading at the elementary level is varied. It is very rare for a student at the 
elementary level to take a high school level class that may have future credit or grade point average implications. 
Therefore, grading at the elementary level this final fourth quarter will be purposefully shifted. Instead of a 
traditional fourth quarter report card, students and families will be provided with a progress report that provides 
additional information on the concepts that a child has mastered along with areas for growth.  
 
In using this modified approach, teachers will focus more on feedback and less on traditional marks or grades. While 
a final format is still being finalized, students and parents can expect that this fourth quarter report will align 
directly with the content that their class has been learning this year including concepts covered during this closure. 
In utilizing this type of an approach, parents and future teachers will have a mutual understanding of their child’s 
progress including areas of strength and concepts in need to additional attention. In essence, this modified 
approach will give us a running start into the next school year.  
 
For parents of fifth graders transitioning to middle school, please know that this modified approach will not 
negatively impact your child in any regard. Middle school counselors will continue to work with fifth grade teachers 
to ensure that students are being scheduled into appropriate classes for next fall. An absence of traditional grades 
will not impact or alter our scheduling efforts. Rather, this qualitative approach to grading may enhance our ability 
to hit the ground running with our sixth graders this coming fall. Additionally, for parents of a student with an active 
IEP and/or 504 plan, please look for information from your case manager/school counselor on forthcoming 
elementary-to-middle school transition meetings.   
 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 

Q: How will a “credit” grade factor into my child’s Grade Point Average (GPA)?  
A: No. This type of grade is purposefully unweighted and will not positively or negatively impact a student’s GPA. 
Rather, a “credit” will show on the student transcript as a “P” indicating that the student successfully passed a class. 
This will be done without a grade/mark of “credit” being calculated into a student’s GPA.  
 
Q: My child has fallen behind in their assignments. Is it too late to catch-up and succeed this semester/quarter?  
A: No, it is not too late in any regard. Teachers, counselors and administrators have been constantly working to 
remain connected to our students. As a first step towards success this quarter/semester, students need to respond 
to their teachers. Together, the student and teacher can develop a flexible plan that will ensure success. It is not too 
late to reengage but as the quarter/semester draws to an end, options in this regard will become more challenging 
to structure. Now is a perfect time to develop a plan for success.  
 



Q: Will a grade of “credit” instead of a traditional letter grade harm my child’s eligibility status for extracurricular 
activities/athletics?  
A: No. A grade/mark of “credit” shows that a student successfully passed all of the requirements of a given class. 
While not calculated in their grade point average, the “credit” grade will show on their academic transcript as 
having successfully passed a class. This ensures that a student will not be negatively impacted from an eligibility 
standpoint.  
 
Q: Can my child choose to change their grade after Wednesday, June 10th?    
A: Not easily. To alter a grade after final grades have been posted, a student will need to appeal their grade in 
accordance with the process outline in the student handbook.   
 
 


	05.06.20 Teaching and Learning Committee Agenda
	Online Meeting
	Wednesday, May 6, 2020 – 12:00p.m.
	Notice of Online Meeting:
	In compliance with the guidance of local and state Health Officials, the Helena Public Schools are conducting this Board of Trustees Teaching & Learning Committee Meeting as an online meeting. This meeting will not occur at any specific location as al...
	Members of the public are able to attend by clicking on the below link. We ask that all participants mute their microphone until called upon by the Committee Chair for general and/or specific public comments. Upon completing public comment, please ens...
	This meeting will take place using Microsoft Teams. However, participants need only to click on the below link to join the meeting from any internet enabled device.
	https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzEwNmYwMGMtMGFmNy00ZWFkLTk4MjgtZjBjOGE1NDU3ZmM4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f4b4f9cd-c417-4e65-8143-10d0fe789053%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229e76a419-5be2-4a93-aac0-5516e94c521c%22%7d
	Committee Purpose Statement: The Teaching and Learning Committee collectively works to operationalize the strategic priorities of the Helena Public Schools specifically in areas related to our goals and measures for teaching and learning.
	AGENDA
	I. CALL TO ORDER / INTRODUCTIONS
	II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT: This is the time for comment on public matters that are not on the agenda.  Public matters do not include any pending legal matters, private personnel issues or private student issues.  Please do not attempt to address such...
	III. REVIEW OF AGENDA
	IV. REVIEW OF MINUTES
	03/04/20 Teaching and Learning Committee Meeting Minutes (see attached)
	V. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	A. Update on Remote Learning
	× Grading Update (T. Ream and J. Davidson)
	× Framework Development (J. McKay, J. Davidson and G. Myers)
	× Update on Spring/Summer Considerations for Small Groups (T. Ream)
	B. Spring Survey Discussion (T. Ream)
	Discussion pertaining to survey plans during our ongoing closure
	VI. BOARD COMMENTS
	VII. ADJOURNMENT
	Next Meeting:
	June 3, 2020  |  Meeting Venue/Format TBD

	03.04.2020 teaching and learning committee meeting minutes - DRAFT
	May Butler Center  |  55 S. Rodney Ave
	Wednesday, March 4, 2020 – 12:00pm
	MINUTES - DRAFT
	ATTENDANCE
	Committee: Others:
	Sarah Sullivan, Committee Chair Terry Beaver, Trustee
	Libby Goldes, Committee Member Tyler Ream, Superintendent
	Siobhan Hathhorn, Committee Member Josh McKay, Assistant Superintendent
	Barb Ridgway, Chief of Staff
	Gary Myers, Education Technology Coordinator
	Jane Shawn, HEA President
	I.  CALL TO ORDER/INTRODUCTIONS
	The meeting was called to order at 12:01pm by Committee Chair, Sarah Sullivan.
	II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT
	No comments were offered.
	III. REVIEW OF AGENDA
	No changes were requested.
	IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	No changes were requested.
	V. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	A. Assessment Platform
	Dr. Ream provided an overview of the previous board meeting’s assessment platform presentation.
	Ms. Goldes recommended including assessment information in handbooks and on the website.  Ms. Ridgway said the information was included in handbooks, and it would be added to the website.  Dr. Ream added the assessments would be reassessed annually an...
	B. Spring Survey Update
	Dr. Ream provided the following updates to the committee:
	 The student survey had been finalized.
	 The staff survey was being edited.
	 The community survey would be finalized after the staff survey.
	Dr. Ream listed a May 2020, estimate for distribution of the first survey and provided an overview of the goals for the surveys as follows:
	 Fewer than 25 questions,
	 A duration of no longer than 15 minutes
	 Determining the most effective questions in conjunction with Panorama Education
	 Developing questions that will lead to the actionable results
	Dr. Ream provided a draft of the first survey to the committee.  Mr. Myers added the vocabulary on surveys varied by grade level.
	Ms. Sullivan asked how the surveys were conducted.  Dr. Ream answered they would be sent via email.  He added that while the vendor will know if the intended recipient has completed the survey, only the completion rate would be reported to the distric...
	Ms. Goldes asked if students would have the ability to comment on questions.  Mr. Myers answered that there were textbox options on surveys.  Dr. Ream added that textboxes slowed down the survey, so they would have to be added sparingly since longer s...
	Ms. Sullivan asked if the survey would be brought back to the committee before being sent to students.  Dr. Ream affirmed.
	C. Data-Related Next Steps
	Dr. Ream provided a follow up on the feedback from the assessment presentation given at the last board meeting as follows:
	 STAR, which seems to have served its purpose.  Teachers and administrators have been asking for something different.
	 Concern has been expressed that STAR isn’t necessarily predictive of SBAC, and it has been agreed that there should be some alignment.
	 Ease of reporting is important.
	 Substitutions for STAR include MAP or IReady in upper level grades.
	 Actionability of the tool should be a primary focus.
	Mr. McKay said the district also was looking at longitudinal assessment.  For example, a 4th grade teacher being able to see a 3rd grade student’s performance.  Mr. Myers added some of the benefits of longitudinal assessment for students as helping at...
	Ms. Sullivan asked the committee to send upcoming discussion items for future meetings.  Dr. Ream added the next meeting would include a discussion on Performance Matters – one location for student assessments.
	VI. BOARD COMMENTS
	No additional comments were offered.
	VII. ADJOURNMENT


